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COUNT ONE - .

- MAGISTRATE JUDGE DENLOW
The SPECTAL AUGUST 2006-2 GRAND JURY charges:
1. At tinics material to this Superceding Tndictment:

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

Local 743 of the International Brotherhood of Teamsters

a. Tnternational Brotherhood of Teamsters (“(he Teamsters™) is an intemational

tabor organization with over one million members. Local 743 s a local labor union bascd in
Chicago, [llinois, chartered by the Teamsters. Local 743 is subject to the constitution of (he
Teamsters and the by-laws lof Local‘ 743.

b. .Local 743 represents members iln collective bargaining with ernployers
engaged in warehouse,. office, service, and other induslries a.ffec:ting interstate and forgign comimerce

with respect 1o wages, hours, grievances, and other terms and conditions of employment. Pursuant




to that representation, Local 743 has executed collective bargaining agreemcnts with employers
within its jurisdiction covering the Chicago arca and Northern Indiana. |

c.. Roth the Teamsters and Local 743 are “labor organizations” engaged in
industries and activities affecting commerce within the meaning of the Labor Managcment Reporting
and Disclosure Act (“LMRDA™), Title 29, United States Code, Sections 402(I) and (j), and are
subject to the provisions of the LMRDA governing “1abor‘ orgaﬁizatioxls.”

d. As a labor organization, Local 743 was required by scctioﬁ 481(h) of the
LMRDA to hold elections for its officers every threc years..

The Defendants

g. Dcfenciant ROBERT WALSTON was an officer and a person emploved by
Local 743, that is, sccretary-treasurer from 1999 until 2001, and president from 2001 untii August
2007.

f.  Defendant RICHARD I.OPEZ was an officer and a person gmployed .by Local
743, that is, recording secrctary and a business agent from 1999 to 2005, seéretary-treasm'cr from
Tanmary 2006 to August 2007, and president from September 2007 to Diecember 2007,

g. Defendant TEHADDEUS BANIA was a person employed by Local 743 as
co;nptrollar and dues administrator from 2001 until December 2007.

h. | Defendant CASSANDRA (DAVIS) MOSLEY was a person cmployed by
Tocal 743 as a busincss agent and organizer from 1991 until December 2006.

. Dcfendant DAVID RODRIGUEZ was a person employed by Local 743 asan

- organizer from 2003 to July 2007.




J. Mark Jones was a person employed by Local 743 as the director o[ organizing
and a business agent from 2003 to July 2006.

Duties Upon Officers and Employees

2. Pursuant to the LMRDA, Title 29, United States Code, Section 501(a), "ollicers,
agents, shop stewards, and other representatives of a labor orgamn mtion occupy positions of trust in
1'elali on to such organization and its membecrs as a group.” Asan officer, agent, and/or representative
of Local 743, cach of the Defendants was subject to section 501(a) of the Labor Management
Reporting and Disclosure Act, Title 29, United States Code. In such capacities, Defendants occupied
:| pb;ition of trust in relation to Local 743 and its members as a group, and were subject o the
fiduciary duties set forth in scétion 50.1 () including: (1) to hold its money and pfo;vcrty solely for
fhe benefit of Local 743 and its members and to manage and expend the same in accordance with
the Teamsters Constitution and the by-laws of Local 743 and applicable resolutions of Loéa] 743's
goverming bodies; (:2) to refrain from dealing with Local 743 as an adverse party or on behalf of an
adverse party in any mattcr connected with their duties; and (3) to refrain from holding or acquiring
any pecuniary or personal interest which conflicts with the interests of Local 743 in any transaction
ponduc{.ed-by‘ him or nnder his direction on behalf of Local 743.

3. Local 743 constitutes a*“local lahor organization,” As a local labor organization, the
.le]eutions of officers in Loca) 743 are subject to Sections 481(b),(c), and (g) of the LMRDA.

4. Pursuant to Section 481(b) of the LMRDA, “Every local labor organization shall clect
s officers not less often than once eﬁery three years by secret ballot among the members n good

standing.”



5. Pursuant to Section 481(¢) of the LMRDA, “Adequate safeguards to insure a fair
election shall be provided, including the right of any candidate to have an observer at the polls and

at the counting of the ballots.”
6. Pursuant to the Section 481(e) of the LMRDA:

In any election required by this section which is to be held by secret baliot .
.. every member in good standing . . . shall have the right to vote for or
otherwise support the candidate or candidates of his choice, without being
subject to penalty, discipline, or improper interference or reprisal of any kind
by such organization or any mémber thercof,

Each member in good standing shall be entitled to one vote. The voles cast
by members of each local labor organization shall be counted, and the results

published, separately.

The election shall be conducted in accordance with the constitution and
bylaws of such organization insofar as they are not inconsistent with the
provisions of this subchapter.

7. As members of the Teamsters, cach of the Defendants was subject to the Teamsters

Constitution, including the following provisions:

Sections 7(b)(1), (2). and (3} of Article XIX which prohibits members and

officers from committing a violation of any spectlic provision of the
Constitution, Local Union Bylaws or rules ol order, or failure to perform any
of the duties specified thereunder; committing a violation of oath of officc or
‘of the oath of lovalty to the Local Union and the Tntemational Union; and
breaching a fiduciary obligation owed to any labor organization by any act of
embezzlement or conversion of umon's funds or property;

Section 9 of Article X1X which prohibits members and officers from
wronglully taking or retaining any money, books, papers, or any other
property belonging to the International Brotherhood of Teamsters, any Joint
Council, Local Union, or other sub-ordinatc body; -

Section 4(b)_of Article XXI which specifies that the Local Union's
Execulive Board shall provide safeguards for the honesl and (air conduct of
local umon clection of officers.




g, Asofficers of Local 743, Delendants ROBERT WALSTON and RICHARD [LOPEZ
were subjcet to the by-laws of Local 743, including Section 15, which requires all officers faithfully
o comply with and enforce the terms of the Teamsters Constitution and to be accountable 1o the
membership with mspéct to the performance of their duties in handling the prdpcr‘ry of Local 743,

Election of Local 743 Officers in 2004

9. {Om or about August 2004, the Exccutixfe Board of Local 743 scheduled a mail ballot
elécti on forits officers for the term January 2005 through December 2007 to be held from September
22 to October 16, 2004 (“the October 2004 election™) and adopted rules and procedures governing
that election.

10.  InSeptcmber 2004, Local 743 purchased official ballot packages for the October 2004
clection consisting of: (1) an outer envelope inwhich the baliols would be delivered by mail to Local
743 members; (2) a secret ballot; (3) a secrct ballot envelope in which a cast ballot would be scaled,
and (4) areturn énvelope in which the cast ballots mside the scerct ballot envelope would be returned
by mail to Local 743 for tallying.

11.  On or about Scptember 22, 2004, the official ballot p';u;,kuges in the October 2004
election were mailed to Local 743 members.

12, On or about October 16, 2004, the ele.cliuns officer for the October 2004 election
began tallying the ballots which had been returned by mail to Tocal 743.

13. On or aboul Octoﬁer 18, 2004, the ﬁxccutivc Board of Local 743 permanently

suspended the tallying of ballots in the October 2004 election before its conclusion and scheduled



arerun election 1o be held from November 9 through Docemtber 4, 2004 (*“the December 2004 election™),
14.  In November 2004, Local 743 purchased ofTicial ballot packages for use in the
December 2004 election consisting of: (1) an outer cnvelope in which the ballots would be delivered
by mail to Local 743 members; (2) a secret ballot; (3) a secrct ballot envelope in which a cast ballot
would be sealed; and (4) a return envelope in which the cast ballots insidclthc sceret batlot envelope
would be returned by mail to Local 743 for tallying.
15, Omnor about November 9, 2004, the official ballot packages 1o the December 2004
clection were mailed to Local 743 members.
16. Onoar ab_oul December 4, 2004, the elcctions officer for the December 2004 election
began tallying the ballots which had been returned by mail to Local 743.
17. Beginning at least as carly as August 2004 and continwing at least through May 20035,
at Chicago, n the Northern District of Ilinois, Eastern Division, and ¢lscwhere,
RICHARD LOPEZ,
CASSANDRA MOSLEY,
DAVID RODRIGUEZ,
ROBERT WALSTON, and
THADDEUS BANIA,
defendants herein, along with Mark Jones and other persons both known and unknown fo the Grand
Jury, knowingly conspired and agreed with cach other and with other persons known and unknown
to the grand jury, to cmjﬁmit offenses against the United States, that 1s:
a. to devise and participate in a scheme lo defraud and to obtain from Local 743:

i. money and property, including official ballot packages in the October

and December 2004 elections and the authorized salanes, benefits, and expenses, (or




all of its duly-elecied officers for the period January 1, 2005 until December 31,
- 2007,
and from Local 743 and its membership:
1. the intangible riglh't o.F honest services of Defendants ROBERT

WALSTON and RICHARD LOPEZ, including the honcst services they owed 1o

Local 743 and its members;
by means of materially false and fraudulent pretenses, rcprcsen’tations-, and promises, and matcrial
omissions, and in furtherance of that scheme, to use or cause the use of the United Statcs mails, in
violation ol Title 18, Unitled States Code, Scctions 1341 and 1346; and

b. lo embezzle, steal and unlawfully and willfully abstract and convert 1o their
own use and to the usc of others property and other assets of Local 743, in violation of Title 29,

United States Code, Section 501(c).

Method and Means of the Conspiracy Was Conducted
I8, H waus part of tl:m conspiracy that Defendants, along with Mark Jones and others
known and unknown to the Grand Jury, cﬁgagcd in a scheme to defraud Local 743 of'money and
property and Local 743 and its members of the intangible right of honest scevices of Defendants
ROBERT WALSTON and RICZHARD LOPEZ, and to obtain money and property [rom Local 743,
including hundreds of official ballot packages in both the Qctober 2004 and December 2004
clections of officers in Local 743 and the authorized salaries, bencfits, and expenses, for all ofits

duly-elected officers for the perod January 1, 2003 until December 31, 2007, by mcans of materially




false and fraudulent pretenses, rcﬁrescntations, and promises, and material omissions, which scheme
is more fully described in paragraphs 2 through 37 of Count Two of this superseding indictment,

19. It was a further part of the conspiracy that Delendants used and caused to be used the
United States mails to defraud Local 743 of its money and property and Local 743 and its
nwmhership of the intangible right of honest services of Defendants ROBERT WALSTON and
R_[CHARD LOPEZ, as more fully descnbed in Counis Two through Five of this superseding
indictment.

20, Itwas further part of the conspiracy that Defendants and others known and unknown
| to the Grand Ju.ry, cmbezzled, stole, am_i unlawfully and willfully abstracted and converted 1o their
own use and to the use of others the property and other assets of Local 743, includin g hundreds of
official ballot packages in both the October 2004 and December 2004 elections i Local 743,
contrary to rules and procedures governing the clection of such officers, as more fully descrbed 1n
Counts Six through Fourteen of this superseding indictment.

21, Tt was further part of the conspiracy that in order to ensure that the incuntbent officcrs
of Local 743, known as the “Unity Slate,” would win the officer election held in 2004, Defendants,
and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, cast and caused to be cast the diverted ballots
collected and converted by Defcndants: during the balloting penod in both the Oclober 2004 and
December 2004 elections for all candidates on the Unity Slate, contrary to the rules and procedures
governing the clections, as more fuﬂy described in paragraphs 2 through 37 of Count Two of ths

superseding indictment.




22 It was further part of the conspiracy that Defendants nusrepresented, conccaled and

hid, and caused to be misrepresented, concealed and hidden, the purposes of and acts done in
furtherance of the conspiracy.
OVERT AC"I'S
23. In furtherance of the conspiracy and to effect the objects and purposes thereof, the
following overt acts, among others, were committed and caused to be commmitled by the Defendants,
and others, in the Northem Distriﬁt of lllinois and elsewhere:
. On o1 about Seplember 7 and 10, 2004, Defendants and other persons knowi
and unknown to the Grand Jury changed and caused to be changed the addresses of hundreds of
Local 743 members in the Teamster International Terminal Accounting Network (“TITAN")

databasec for Local 743, from the addresses previously provided by Local 743 members, lo those

addresses belonging to defendants’ friends, family members, and confidantes;

h. On or aboul September 17, 2004, Delendants and other persons known and
unknown to the Grand Jury caused the fraudulently-altered hst of addresses of Local 743 members
to be delivered to a business hired by Local 743 for usc in printing the official ballol packages and
maiting those packages to Local 743 members;

c. On or about Seplember 22, 2004, Defendants and other persons known and
urnknown to the Grand Jury caused official bal Iqi packages to be sent through the United States mail,
by abusiness hired by local 743, to th¢ addresses reflected for Local 743 members i the fraudulently

allered address list.



d. Tn or about late September 2004, Defendant CASSANDRA MOSLEY
collected approximately two official ballot packages for the October 2004 clection of officers in
Local 743, which had been mailed to an address, known to the Grand Jury, in Memitlville, Indiana

(Address No. 1);

e In or about late September 2004, Defendant CASSANDRA MOSLEY
collected approximately three official ballot packages for the October 2004 election of officers 1
Local 743, which were mailed to an address, known to the Grand Jury, m Gary, Indiana (Address
No. 2);

f. In or about late Septcmber 2004, Defendant CASSANDRA MOSLEY
collceted approximately two official ballot packéges for the October 2004 election of officers in
Local 743, which werc mailed to an addrcss, known o the Grand Jury, in Gary, Indiana (Address
No. 3);

l‘ g In or about late September 2094, Defendant CASSANDRA MOSLEY
possessed approximately three official secret ballot envelopes for the October 2004 clection of
officers in Local 743, which were mailed to addresses, known to the Grand Jury, in Chicago, MMinois
and Forest Park, lllinois (Address Nos. 15, 16 and 17);

h. In or about late September 2004, Mark Jones collected approximately four
official baliot packages for the October 2004 election r;».f officers in Local 743, which were matled

to an address, known to the Grand Jury, in Lockport, Tllinois {Address No. 4);
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1. Tn or about late September 2004, Mark Jones collected approximately four
official ballot packages for the Qctober 2004 election O'I‘Ofﬁcefs in Local 743, which were mailed
to an address, known to the Grand Jury, in Plainfield, Illinois (Address No. 5); |

| J- In or about late September 2004, Mark J‘onfﬂ"s collected approximately [our
official ballot packages for the October 2004 election of officers m Local 743, which werc mailed
to an address, known to the Grand Jury, in Bolingbrook, Illinois (Address Nq. 6,

k. | Tn or about late September 2004, Defendant DAVTD RODRIGUEZ collected

approximatcly four official ballot packages for the October 2004 election of oif[icers in Local 743,
“which were mailed to an address, known to the Grand Jury, in Cicero, Tlhnois (Address No. 7);

1. On or about late Seplember 2004, Defendant DAVID RODRIGUEZ collccted
approximately four official ballot packages in the October 2004 election of officers in Local 743,
which were mailed to an address, known to the Grand Jury, in Chicago, Ilinois (Address No. 8);

m. | Between on or about Qctober 29 throug_h on or about Novembcr 9, 2004,
Defendants and other persons both known and unknown to the Grand Jury changed or caused to be
changed the addresses of b undreds‘ of Local 743 members in the TITAN database for Local 743 from
the members’ prcviousiy recorded addresscs to addresses provided by defendants I”o;‘ Defendants’
friends, family, and other confidantes;

n. On or about September 22 through Octoﬁer 16, 2004, Defendants and other
persons both known and unknown to the Grand Jury marked, and caused to be marked, ballows (or
all candidates on the Unity Slate and cast, and caused to be cast, by mail ﬁpproximatcly 118 ballots

in the October 2004 election of officers in Local 743 bearing the names of the Local 743 members;

11



o. On or about November 5, 2004,.Dcfendm1ts and other persons both known
and unknown to the Grand Jury caulsed an electronic computer list of addresses of Local 743
members from the TTTAN dalab'cisg for Local 743 to be delivered to a Busincss hired by Local 743
to print the official ballot packages and then mail those official ballot packages 1o Local 743
mcfnbcrs;

P. On or about November 9, 2004, Defendants and other persons both known
and unknown to the Grand Jury caused official ballot packageé to be mailed by a business hired by
local 743, located in the Northern District o Tllinois, by United States Mail to the addresses for those
Local 743 members appearing in the clectronic computer list of addmssqs from the TITAN databasc

for Local 743;

Q. In or about mid-November 2004, Defendant CASSANDRA MOSLEY
cﬁl]ecled approximately five official ballot packages for the December 2004 election ol officers in
Local 743, which were mailed to an address, kno.wn to the Grand Jury, in Gary, Indiana (Address
No. 9}, |

r. In or about mid-November 2004, Defendant CASSANDRA MOSLEY
collected approximately seven official ballot packages for the December 2004 election of olficers
in Local 743, which were n‘iailcd‘to an address, known 1;0 the Grand .Iury-, in Gary, Indiana (Address

Na. 10);

8. In or about mid-November 2004, Defendant CASSANDRA MOSLEY

collected approximately seven official ballot packages for the December 2004 elechion of oflicers

12



in Local 743, which were mailed to an address, known to the Grand Jury, in Gary, Indiana (Address
No. 11); |

t. In or aﬁout mid-November 2004, Defendant CASSANDRA MOSLEY
possessed approximately one official secret ballot envelope for the December 2004 clection of
officers in Local 743, which were mailed to addresses, known to the Grand Jury, iﬁ. Chicago, Iltinois
and Forest Park, Tllinois (Address No. 21);

u. In or about mid-November 2004? Defendant RICHARD LOPEZ collected
approximately seven official ballot packages for the December 2004 glection of officers in Local
743, which were mailed to an address, known to the Grand Jury, in Melrose Pa;k, Tlinois (Address
No. 12);

V. In or about mid-November 2004, Defendant RICHARD LOPEZ collected
approximately five official ballot packages for the December 2004 election of officers in Local 743,
which were mailed to an addrcss, knox.»vn {o the Grand Jury, in Melrosc Park, [llinois (Address No.
13),

w. In or about mid-November 2004, Defendant DAVID RODRIGU FZ collected
approximately five official ballot packages for the December 2004 clection of officers in Local 743,
which were mailed té an address, known to the Grand Jury, in Cicero, lllinois tAddress No. 7};

X Tt or about mid-November 2004, Defendant DAVID ROI)RTGI JEZ collecled
approximately five official ballot packages (or the December 2004 election of oflicers in Local 743,

which were mailed to an address, known to the Grand Jury, in Chicago, 1llinois (Address No. 14);

13



y. In or about mid-November 2004, Defendant DAVID RODRIGUEZ collected
approximately six official ballot packages for the December 2004 election of officers in Local 743,
which.were muailed {o an address, known to the Grand Jury, in Chicago, Tlinois {(Address No. 8);

Z. ]'_n_ or about mid-November 2004, Defendant DAVID RODRIGUEZ possessed
approximately three official secret ballot envelopes and approximately three secret ballots for thc
Decemnber 2004 election of officers in Local 743, which were mailed 1o addresses, known 1o (he

Grand Jury, in Chic:ag;), Illinois (Addrcss;s No. 18, 19, 20 and 21);

aa. On or about November 9 through Décember 3, 2004, Defendants and other
persons both known and unknown to the Grand Jury marked, and caused to be marked, ballots for
all candidates on the Unity Slate and then cast, and caused to be cast, by mail approximately 142
ballots in ‘the December 2004 election of officers in Local 743 bearing the names of the Local 743

members;

bb. Tn or about May 2005, Defendants CASSANDRA MOSLEY and
THADDEUS BANIA provided false and misleading testimony under cath in depositions in the civil
matter Chao v. Local 743, International Brotherhood of Teamsters, Case No, 05-C-4642 (N.D.11L.).

Allin violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371 and 2.
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COUNT TWO

The SPECIAL AUGUST 2006-2 GRAND JURY charges:
L. The allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 16 of Count One of this
superceding indictment are realleged and incorporated as though fully set forth herein.

The Scheme to Defraud

2. Beginning at least as carly as August 2004 and continuihg at least through May 2005,
m Chicago, in the Northern District of Tllinois, Eastern Division, and elscwhere,
RICHARD LOPEZ,
CASSANDRA MOSLEY,
DAVID RODRIGUEZ,
ROBERT WALSTON, and
THADDEUS BANIA,
defendants herein, along with Mark Jones and other persons both known and unknown to the Grand
Jury, did devisc and ini;cnd to d;:vise a scheme to defraud Local 743 Qf money and property and
.anal 743 Qud 1ts members of the intangiblé right of honest scrvices of Defendants ROBERT
WALSTON and RICHARD LOPEZ, and to obtain money and property from Local 743, including
hundreds of official ballot packages in both the Oclober 2004 und December 2004 elections of
officers in Local 743 and the authorized salarics, benefits, and expenses, for all ol ils du]y-c]cc_tcd
officers for the penod January 1, 20035 until December 31, 2007, by mcans of materially false and
fraudulent pretenses, represcntations, and promises, and material omissions, which scheme s f'Llrl-lwr
deseribed 1o the following paragraphs.
3. The scheme to defrand devized by Delendants was intended to deprive Local 743 of

its money and property, including official hallot packages in the October and December 2004

15



elections and the authorized salaries, benefits, and expenses, for all of its duly-elected officers for
the period January 1, 2005 until December 31, 2007,

4. The scheme was further intended to deprive Local 743 and its members ol their
intangible right to the honest services of Defendants ROBERT WALSTON and RICHARD LOPEZ,
including the honest services Defendants ROBERT WALSTON and RICHARD LOPEZ owed Lo
Local 743 and its members pursuant (o sections 481(b), (c), and (&} and 501(a) of the LMRDA,
Articles XIX and XXTT of the Teamsters Constitution, and section 15 of the By-Laws of Local 743.

3 The scheme was further intended to deprive Local 743 and its members of their
intangible right to the honest services of Defendants ROBERT WALSTON and RICHARD LOPEZ,
as set forth above, and thus provide privale gain to Defendants ROBERT WALSTON and
RICHARD LOPEZ consisting of occupancy of their respective Local 743 union offices and the
authorized salarics, benefits, and expenses for those offices for the period January 1, 2005 until

DPecember 31, 2007.

Manner and Means of the Scheme to Defraud

0. It was part ol the scheme that Defendants and other persons both known and unknown
to the Grand Jury would maximize the likelihood that all candidates on the Unity Slate m the 2004
clection of officers in Local 743, which included Defendant ROBERT WALSTON for president and
Defendant RICHARD LOPEZ for recording secretary, would be declared the winners in the election
and take the constitutional offices, whether or not they received a plurality of legilimate votes cast.
7. It was further part of the scheme that Defendants and other persons both known and

unknown to the Grand Jury would increase the vote total [or all candidates on the Unity Slate in the

16



2004 balloting in election of officers of Local 743, which included Defendant ROBERT WALSTON

for president and Defendant RICHARD LOPEZ for recording secretary, with ballots cast contrary

{0 the rules and procedures of the election.

8. 1t was further part of the scheme that Defendants and other persons both known and
unknown to the Grand Jury would cast fraudulent ballots for all candidates on the Unity Slate hy
using the names of Local 743 members.

9. It was further part of the scheme that Defendants and other persons both known and
unknown to the Grand Jury would aid and abet each other accomplishing the objects of the scheme
to defraud, including defrauding Local 743 and its members of the intan gible right ofhonest services

of Defendants ROBERT WALSTON and RICHARD LOPEZ.

Misdirecting official ballot packages by mail

10, It wds further part of the scheme that, in order to maximize the likelihood that all
candidates on fhe Unity Slate would be declared winners of the election of officers held in 2004, |
Defendants and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury cast or caused to be cas( official
ballots diverted by Defendants during the balloting period in bOth the Qctober and Decémber
2004 elections, contrary to the rules and procedurcs governing the elections.

11. It was further part of the scheme that Defendants, and others known and unknown 1o
the Grand Jury, secrctly changed the addresses of Local 743 members in the Local 743 TTTAN
databasc to other addresses provided by Defendants, so that official ballot packages which should

have beenmailed to Local 743 members would instead be mailed to Defendants® friends, family, and

other confidantes.
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12, It waé further part of the scheme that Defendants and other persons both known and
unknown to the Grand Jury identified workplaces With employees represented by Local 743 where
the membership had a history of not casting their ballots in Local 743's union oflicer ¢lections.

[3. T was further part of the schemic that Defendants CASSANDRA MOSLEY, DAVID
RODRIGUEZ, along with Mark Jones and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, prior lo
the Qutober 2004 election, collected addresses of and their friends, family, and other conlidantes,
to be used in diverting official ballot packages which were supposed to be delivered by mail to Local
743 members eligible to cast ballots. |

14, It wés further part of the scheme that Defendants CASSANDRA MOSLEY, t)AVl'.D
RODRIGUEZ, along with Mark Jones and otbers known and unknown to the Grand Jury, prior to
the October 2004 election, provided those addresses to Defendant WALSTON and others within
Local 743 with the knowledge that official ballot packages which, in accordance with the rules dnd
procedures go;\-fcmin ¢ the clection, should have been mailed lo the addresses of cligible Local 743
members, would instead be nlailed to the addresses provided by Defendants.

15. I st further part of the scheme that Defendants CASSANDRA MOSLLY,
RICHARD LOPEZ, and DAVID RODRIGUEZ, and others known and unknown to the CGrrand Jury,
prior to the December 2004 election, collected addresses of their friends, f"dmily, and other
confidantes to be used in diverting official ballot packages which were supposed 1o be delivered by

mail to Local 743 members eligible to cast ballots.

16. Tt was further part of the scheme that Defendants CASSANDRA MOSLLY,

RICHARD LOPEZ, and DAVID RODRIGUEZ, and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury,
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prior to the December 2004 clections, provided those addresses to Defendant WALSTON and others
within Local 743 with the knowledge that official ballot packages which, in accordance with the
rﬁ]es and procedures governing the election, should have been marled to the addresses of eligible
Local 743 members would instead be mailed o the addresses provided by Defendants.

17. It was further part of the scheme that Defendants CASSANDRA MOSLEY,
RICHARD LOPEZ, DAVID RODRIGUEZ, along with Mark Jones and other persons both known
and unknown to the Grand Jury, istructed their friends, family, and other conhdantes whosc
addresses Defendants collcdted in the October 2004 und December 2004 elections, that they would
receive materials from Local 743 soon thereafter by mail, and that they should then save those
materials and tum {he materials over to Defendants CASSANDRA MOSLEY, RICIIARD LOPEZ
and DAVID RODRIGUEZ. |

LE. Tt was further part of the scheme (hat Defendants ROBERT W ALSTON Emdl
THADDIUS BANIA, and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, prior to both the Qctober
2004 and Dceember 2004 clections, chamgcd and caused to be changed in the Tocal 743 TITAN
databasc the addresses o hundreds of Local 743 members because they worked at [acilities with a
history of low voter participation in officer elections from the member’s correet address to the
address of one of the family members, friends, or other confidantes provided by Defendants.

19. It was further part of the scheme that Defendants ROBERT WALSTON and
THADDEUS BANIA, and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, prior to both the Oclober
2004 and December 2004 elections, provided and cauéed 10 be provided a list of addresses prepared

{rom the Local 743 TITAN database, which contained the addresscs provided by Defendants, to the
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printing company hired by Local 743 to print and then mail the official ballot packages by the United
States Mails to Local 743 members at the addresses appearing on the provided list.

20. It was further part of the scheme that during the balloting period in the October 2004
clection, Defendants CASSANDRA MOSLEY, DAVID RODRIGUEZ, along with Mark Jones and
others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, collected the redirected official ballot packages for
hundreds of Local 743 members which had been diverted by mail to Defendants’ family, friends, and
other confidantes.

21. It was further part of the scheme that during the bﬁlloting period in the December
2004 election, Defendants CASSANDRA MOSLEY, RICHARD LOPEZ, and DAVID
RODRIGUEZ, and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, collected the redirected official
hallot packages for hundreds of Local 743 members which had been diverted by mail to Defendants’
family, friends, and other confidantes.

22. It was further part of the scheme that Defendant ROBERT WALSTON, and other
pérsons both known ;md unknown to the G*rami .Iur)_/, marked, and caused to be marked, the collected
ballols for all candidates on the Unity Slate and cast them or caused them o be cast in the Qulober
2004 and December 2004 elections by mail, thereby fraudulently imﬁrcasin.g the vole total for all
candidates on the Unity Slate by making it appear that an cligiblé Local 743 member, rather than
Defendants, casl the misdirected ballot.

Theft of undeliverable ballots

23, Itwas [urther part of the scheme that Defendants, and other persons both knowrn and

~ unknown to the Grand Jury, cast, and caused to be casl, ballots for all candidates on the Unity Slate
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in the October 2004 election which were obtained from official ballot packages which had been
mailed to Local 743 members, but returned lo Local 743 as undeliverable, contrary to the rules and

procedures of the election,

24, Tiwas farther part of the scheme that Defendant CASSANDRA MOSLEY, and oLhef
pcrsons both known and unknown to the Grand Jury, fraudulently incrcased the vole total for all
candidates on the Unity Slaté in the October 2004 election by marking ballots, and causing ballots
to be marked, which had been taken from the undeliverable ballol packages for all candidates on the
* Unity Slate and then casting them, and causing thein to be cast, by mail, thereby by making it appear
that a Local 743 member, rather than Defendants, had cast the ballot.
Tallying of ballots in October 2004
25. It was further part of the scheme that the Local 743 Exccutive Board, when it
appearcd that the challenging candidate for president of Local 743 on the opposition slate could win
that ofﬁcé, upheld an objection of the opposition slate concerning the challengé ol a single ballot;
ordered all tallying of ballots in the October 2004 election to be permanently suspended; ordered all
ballots to be impound by Local 743; ordered a rerun of the election in December 2004, and
dismissed the imeumbent Election Officer for the rerun election in December 2004,
| Obtaining false replacement ballots
26. | It was further part of the scheme that Defendants, and other persons both known and
unknown to the Grand Jury, telephoned the Election Officer in the December 2004 election posmg
as Local 743 members entitled to areplacement ballot packages, CDI’]tT::l"J')/ to the rules and procedures

governing the election.
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27, Tt was further part of the scheme that Defendants, and other persons both known and
unknown to the Grand Jury, in the Dceember 2004 election, requested that the Election Officer send
replacement official ballot packages to various addresses of Defendant DAVID RODRIGUEZ’
friénds, family, and other confidantes, and not to the address where the Local 743 member the caller
was posing as resided.

28. It was further part of .thc scheme that Defendant DAVID RODRIGUEZ, and other
persens both known and unknown to the Grand Jury, fc:tricved the replacement official ballot
packages from the address given, mark, and caused to be marked, the enclosed ballot for all
candidates on the Unity Slate, and then cast, and caused to be cast, the enclosed hallot by mail inthe
Déccrnbcr 2004 election, making it appear that a Local 743 member, rather than Delendants, had cast
the replacemcent ballot, thereby fraudulently lincreasing the vote total for all candidates on the Unity
Slate.

Procuring and uging counterfeit gnvelopes_

29, Tt was further part ol the scheme that Defendants, and other persons both known and
unknown to the Grand Jury, procured counterfeit return envelopes that appeared to be officiul return
cnvelopes in the Décember 2004 election.

30, It was further part of the schcrﬁc that Defendants, and other persons both known and
unknown to the Grand Jury, collecled the names, addresses, and social security numbers of members
of Local 743 without their knowlcdge or permussion.

31. It was further part of the sc?hemel that Defendants DAVI]’j RODRIGUEZ and

CASSANDRA MOSLEY, and other persons both known and unknown to the Grand Jury, obtained
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official ballots in the December 2004 election, marked, and caused (o be marked, the ballots [or all
candidates on the Unity Slate, placed them in the counterfeit envelopes bearing the name, address,
and social security number of the unsuspccting member of Local 743, and cast them, and causcd
them to be cast, by mail, making it appear that the unsuspecting Local 743 member, rather than
Defendants, had cast the hallot, thereby fraudulently increasing the vote total for all candidates on
the Unity Slate. |
Supplying False Addresses to Election Officer

32. It was furthef part of the scheme that DefendantTHADDEUS BANIA, and other
persons both known and unknown to the Grand Jury, received requests from the Elections Officer
n the Deceniber 2004 election to obtain updated addresscs for Local 743 members whose ballot
packages were returned as undeliverable so that replacement ballot packages could be sent to the
updated addresses before the balloting period ended.

- 33 It was further part of the scheme that Defendant THADDEUS BANIA, and other

persons both known and unknown to the Grand Jury, responded to those requests by supplying the
Elections Officers with false addr;aé;ses for Local 743 members, including addresses of the friends,
family, and other confidantes of Defendants CASSANDRAMOSLEY, RICHARD LOPLZ, DAVID
RODRIGUEZ, so that the persons at those addresses, and not the intended Local 743 members,
~ would receive the replacement ballot packages for the December 2004 election.

34. It was further part of the scheme that during the balloting period in the Deecmber
2004 clccfion., Defendants CASSANDRA MDSLEY,‘R_‘[CHARD LOPEZ, DAVID RODRIGUEZ,

and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, collected the misdirected replacement ballot
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packages for Local 743 members which had been diverted by mail to these Defendants’ family,
friends, and other confidantes.

35. It was further part ol the scheme that Defendant ROBERT WALSTON?_ and other
perSoﬂs both known and unknown to the Grand Jury, marked, and caused to be marked, the collected
ballots for all candidates on the Unity Slate and cast them, and caused them to ke cast, in the
December 2004 election by mail, thereby frauduicntly increasing the vole total for all candidates on
the Unily Slate bj,;making it appear that an cligible Local 743 member, rather than Defendants, cast
the misdirected replacement ballot.

36. It was further part of the scheme that Defendants, and others known and unknown to
the Grand Jury, used and caused to be used the United States mails to defraud Local 743 and its
members.

37 It was ﬁlrther part of the scheme that to further the objects of the scheme and to
continue the scheme without detection by the members of Local 743, the Election Olfficcrs, law
enforcement and: others, Dcefendants misrepresented, concealed, and hid; and caused to be
misrepresented, concealed and hidden the cxistence of the scheme, as well as the conduct and the
trug purposes of the acls committed during and in furtherance of the schemc.

Execution of the Scheme

38. On or about September 22, 2004, in Chicago, and clsewhere in the Northerm District

- of Minois, Eastern Division,
RICHARD LOPEZ,
CASSANDRA MOSLEY,
DAVID RODRIGUEZ, and
THADDEUS BANTA,
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Defendants herein, along with Mark Joncs and others known and unknown to the Grand J ury, for
the purpose of executing the above-described schemc and attempting to do so, knowingly placed or
caused to be placed in an authorized depository for mail matter approximately 150 olficial ballot
packages in the October 2004 Election of Officers in Local 743 bearing the names of the Local 743
members to be sent and delivered by the Postal Service according to the direction thereon;

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1341, 1346 and 2.
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COUNT THREE

The SPECIAL AUGUST 2006-2 GRAND JURY further charges:

1. The allegations contained in paragraphs 1 (hrough 37 of Count Two of this
superceding indictment are realleged and incorporated as though fully sct forth herein.

2. On or about November 9, 2004, in Chicago, and elsewhere in the Northern District

ol Illinois, Bastern Division,

RICHARD LOPEZ,
CASSANDRA MOSLEY,
DAVID RODRIGUEZ,
ROBERT WALSTON, and
THADDEUS BANIA,
Defendants herein, together with others known and unknown to the Grand Jury; for the purpose of
executing the above-described scheme and attempting to do so, knowingly placed or causcd to be
placed in an authorized depos: tory for mail matter approximately 157 official ballot packages inthe
December 2004 Election of Officers in Local 743 bearing the names of the Local 743 members to

be sent and delivered by the Postal Service according to the direction thereon;

In violation of Title 18, Uniled States Code, Sections 1341, 1346 and 2.
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COUNT FOUR
The SPECIAL AUGUST 2006-2 GRAND JURY further charges:
1. The allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 37 of Count Two of this
superceding indictment are realleged and incorporated as though fully set forth herein.
2. On or about September 22, through Octo‘ber. 16, 2004, in Chicago, and elsewhere in
the Northemn Distriet of Illinois, Eastern Division, |
CASSANDRA MOSLEY,
DAVID RODRIGUEZ,
ROBERT WALSTON, and
THADDEUS BANIA
defendant hercin, along with Mark Jones and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, for the
purpose of execuling the above-described scheme and attempting to do so, knowingly cauvsed to be
delivered approximalely 118 cast ballots in the October 2004 Election of Officers m Local 743
bearing the names of the Local 743 members and addressed lo Independent Election Officer,

Teamslers Local 743, P.O. Box 806518, Chicago, IL 60680-4120;

In violation of Title 18, Unitcd States Code, Sections 1341, 1346 and 2.
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COUNT FIVE

The SPECIAL AUGUST 2006-2 GRAND JURY further charges:
. The allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 37 of Count Two of this
superceding indictment are realleged and incorporated as though fully set forth herein.
2, 7 Onor about November 9, through December 3, 2004, in Chicago, and elsewhere mn
the Northemn District of Illinois, Eastern Division,
RICHARD LOPEZ,
CASSANDRA MOSLEY,
DAVID RODRIGUEZ,
ROBERT WALSTON, and
THADDEUS BANIA,
defendant herein, together with others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, for the purpose of
executing the above-described scheme and attempting to do so, knowingly placed or caused lo be
placed in an authorized depository for mail matter approximalely one 142 cast ballots in the
Deccember 2004 Election of Officers in Local 743 bearing the names of the Local 743 members and
addressed to American Arbitration Association, Election Department, 225 N. Michigan Avenue,
Suite 1840, Chicago, IL 60601-9510, to be sent and delivered by the Postal Service according to the

direction thereon;

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1341, 1346 and 2.
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COUNT SIX
The SPECIAL AUGUST 2006-2 GRAND JURY further charges:

1. The allcgations conlained In paragraphs 1 through 16 of Count One of this

supcrceding indictment are realleged and incomorated as though fully set forth herein.

2 On or about September 22, 2004, at Chicago, lllinois, and clscwhere in the Northern
District of Tllinois, Eastern Division, |
ROBERT WALSTON,
while an officer of, and erﬁp]ayed directly and indirectly by, Local 743 and

CASSANDRA MOSLEY, and
THADDEUS BANIA,

whi]‘e employed directly and indirect]y by Local 743, defendants herein, did embezzle, steal and
unlawfully and willfully abstract and convert {o their own use and to the usc of othcrs. the property
and other assets of said labor organization consisting of at least twenty-six official ballot packages
in the October 2004 Elcction of officers, as described in paragraph 20 in Count Two abovc, owned
by Local 743, each beanng the name of a Local 743 member, contrary to rules and procedures
govemning the clection of such officers.

All violation of Title 29, United States Code, Scctioﬁ 501(c) and Title 18, United States

Code, Section 2.
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COUNT SEVEN

The SPECIAL AUGUST 2006-2 GRAND JURY further charges:
1. The allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 16 of Count One of this
supcreeding indictment are realleged and incorporated as though fully set forth hersin.
2. On or about November 9, 2004, at Chicago, Illinois, and eisawhcrc in the Northem
District of lllinois, lEastem Division,
ROBERT WALSTON,
while an officer of, and employed dircetly and indirectly by, Local 5'43 and

CASSANDRA MOSLEY, and
THADDEUS BANIA,

while employed directly and indircetly by Local 743, defendants herein, did embezzle, steal and
unlawfully and willfully abstl.'act and convert to their own use and to the use of others the property
and other assets of said labor organization consisting of at least eighty official ballot packages in the
December 2004 Clection of officers, as described in paragraph 21 in Count Two above, owned by
Local 743, each bearing the name of a Local 743 member, c;)ntrary ln‘ rules and procedurcs -
goveming the election of such officers,

All violation of Title 29, United States Code, Section 501(¢) and Title 18, United States

Code, Section 2.
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COUNT EIGHT

The SPECIAL AUGUST 2006-2 GRAND JURY further charges:

1. The allegations contained in paragrﬁp]'ls 1 through 16 of Couni Onc of Uus
superceding indilctment are realleged and incorporated as though fully set forth hereim.

2, On or about November 9, 2004, at Chicago, lllinois, and ‘elsewherc in the Northem
lDistrict of Nlinois, Eastern Division, |

ROBERT WALSTON,

while an officer of, anci employed directly and indirectly by, Local 743 and

RICHARD I.OPEZ, and
THADDEUS BANIA,

while employed dircetly and indircctly by Local 743, defendants hercin, did embezzle, sical and
unlawfully and willfﬁl] y abstract and convert to their own use and to the use of others the property
and other assets of said labor organization consisting of at least thirteen official ballot packages ;n
the December 2004 Election of officers, as described in paragraph 21 in Count Two above, owned
by Locai 743, each bearing the name of a Local 743 meinber, uontrarf to rules and procedures
goveming the clection of such officers.

All violation of Title 29, United States Code, Section 501(c) and Title 18, United Statcs

Code, Section 2.
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COQUNT NINE

The SPECIAT. AUGUST 2006-2 GRAND JURY further charges:
1. The allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 16 of Count One of thiy
.supcrccding indictment are realleged and inlcmporated as though .fully .sel forth hercin.
2, On or about September 22, 2004, at Chicag.c), Mlinois, and elsewhere in the Northern
District of [llinois, Eastern Division,
ROBERT WALSTON,
while an officer of, and employed directly and indirectly by, Local 743 and

DAVID RODRIGUEZ, and
THADDEUS BANIA,

while emploved directly and indirectly by Local 743, defendants hercin, did embezzle, steal and
unlawfully and willfully abstract and convert to their own usc and to the use of others the properly
and other assets of said labor organmization consisting of at least eight o[’ﬁcial ballot packages i the
Qctober 2004 Eleclion of officers, as described in paragraph 20 in Count Two above, owned by
Local 743, each bearing the name ol a Local 743 member, contrary to rules..‘a.n.d procedures
governing the election of such officers.

All violation of Title 29, United States Code, Section 501(c¢) and Title 18, United States

Code, Section 2.
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COUNT TEN

The SPECIAL AUGUST 2006-2 GRAND JURY further charges:

1. The allcgations contained in paragraphs 1 through 16 of Count Onc of this
superceding indictment are realleged and incorporated as though fully set forth herein.

2. C)nlor about November 9, 2004, at Chicago, [llinois, and elsewhcre in the Northem
District of Illinois, Fastern Division,

RORBERT WALSTON,

while an officer of, and cmployed directly and indirectly by, Local 743 and

DAVID RODRIGUEZ, and
THADDEUS BANIA,

while employed directly and indiréct]y by Local 743, defendants herein, did embezzle, steal and
unlawfully and willfully abstract and convert to their own use and to the usc of others the property
and other assets of said labor organization consisting of at least eleven official ballot pack aﬁgcs inthe
December 2004 Eleclion of officers, as described in paragraph 21 in Count Two above, owned by
Tocal 743, each bearing the name of a Local 743 mcmber, contrary lo mics and 'prC@dLW@S
soverning the election of such officers.

All violation of Title 29, United States Code, Section 501(c) and Title 18, United States

Code, Scction 2.
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COUNT ELEVEN

The SPECIAL AUGUST 2006-2 GRAND JURY further charges:

I. The allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 16 of Count Oné of this
superceding indictment arc realleged and incorporated as though fully set forth hercin.

2. In or about September to October 2004, at Chicago, Illinoi;s, and elsewhere in the
Northem Distriet of*1tlinois, Eastern Division,

CASSANDRA MOSLEY,

while employed directly and indirectly by Local 743, defendant herein, did embezzle, stcal and
unlawfully and willfully abstract and convert to her own use and to the use of others the property and
other assets of said labor organization consisting of at least three ofl {icial ballot packages in the
October 2004 Election of officers, as described in paragraph 24 in Count Two above, owned by
Tocal 743, each bearing the name of a Local 743 member, contrary to rules and procedurss
governing the election of such officers.

All violation of Title 29, United States Code, Scctlion 501(c) and Title 18, Uniled Statcs

Code, Section 2.
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COUNT TWELVE

The SPECIAL AUGUST 2006-2 GRAND JURY further charges:

1. The allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 16 of Count One of this
superpcding indictment are reallcged and incorporated as though fully set forth herein.

2. In or about November (o Decermber 2004, at Chicago, [llinois, and elsewhere in the
Northemn District of Illinois, Eastern t)ivision,

CASSANDRA MOSLEY, and
DAVID RODRIGUEZ,

while employed directly and indirectly by Local 743, defendants herein, did embezzle, steal and
unlawfully and willfully abstract and convert to their own use and to the use of others the property
and olher assets of said labor organization consisting of at least two official ballot packages in the
Dceember 2004 Election of officers, .-,L.Es deseribed in paragraph 31 in Count Two above, owned by
Local 743, each bearing the namc of a Local 743 member, contrary to rules and procedures
govenﬁng the election of such officers.

All violation of Title 29, United States Code, Seclion 501(¢) and Tiltle 18, United Statcs

Code, Section 2.
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COUNT THIRTEEN

The SPECTAL AUGUST 2006-2 GRAND JURY further charges:-

l. The allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 16 of Count One of this
superecding indictment are realleged and incorporated as though fully set forth herein.

2. In or aboul November 2004, at Chicago, lllinois, and elsewhere in the Northern
District of 1llinois, Eastern Division,

DAVID RODRIGUEZ,

while employed directly and indirectly by Local ;:’43, defendant herein, did embezzle, steal and
unlawfully and willfully abstract and convert to lﬁs own use and to the use of others Lhe property and
other assets of said labor organization consisting of at least twenty-two official ballot packages in
the Decomber 2004 Election of officers, as described in paragraph 28 in Count Two above, owned
by Local 743, each bﬂariﬁg the name of a Local 743 member, contrary lo rules and procedures
governing the election of such olficers.

Al wviolation of Title 29, United States Code, Section 301(c) anleitlc 18, United States

Code, Section 2. |
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COUNT FOURTEEN

The SPECTAL AUGUST 2006-2 GRAND JURY further charges:
1. The allegations comtained in paragraphs 1 through 16 of Count One of this
- superceding indictment are reatleged and incorporaled as though fully set forth herein.
2. Tn or about November 2004, at Chicago, Hlinois, and elsewhere in the Nor‘them
District of Illinois, Eastern Dilvision,
CASSANDRA MOSLEY,
- DAVID RODRIGUEZ, and
THADDEUS BANIA,
defendants herein, while employed directly and indirectly by Local 743, did embezzle, steal and
unlawfully ﬁn.d willfully abstract and convert to their own use and to the use of others the property
and other assets of smd Iabcﬁ- organization consisting of at least ten official ballot packages in the
December 2004 Election of officers, as described in paragraphs 33 and 34 in Count Two above,
owned by Local 743, each bearing the name of a Local 743 member, contrary to rules and procedures
governing the election of such officers.

All violation of Title 29, United States Code, Section 501(c) and Title 18, United States

Code, Section 2.

37



FORFEITURE ALLEGATION

The SPECIAL AUGUST 2006-2 GRAND JURY further charges:

L. 'fhc allegations contained in Counts One Through Five ofthis Superseding Indictrnent
are hereby realleged and incorporated by rcfercncc'for the purpose ol alleging forfeiture pursuant to
Title 18, United States Code, Section 981(a)}(1)(C) and Title 28, United States Code, Section
2401(c).

2, | Asaresultofthe Defendants’ violation of Title 18, United States Code, Scction1341,
1346, and conspiracy, as alleged in Counts One Through Five of the foregoing Superseding

Indictment,
RICHARD LOPEZ,
CASSANDRA MOSLEY,
DAVID RODRIGUEZ,
ROBERT WALSTON, and .
THADDEUS BANIA,
* defendants herein, shall forfeit to the Uniled States of America, pur.suam to Title 18, United Stales
Code, Section 981(a}(1)(C) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 2461(c), any and all right,
title, and interest the defendants may have in any property which constitutes and 1s derived
from proceeds traceable to the charged offenses, including, but not limited to any property,

real or personal, which constitutes and is derived from proceeds traccable to the offense, including,

but is not limited to, the following:

a. at least approximately $2,364,533 in authorized salary, expenses, and benclits
received by defendants ROBERT WALSTON and RICHARD LOPEZ, for the period of January

2005 to December 2007,
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b. any and all of their respective rights, titles, interests, memberships, and

positions in the Teamsters Union held by defendants.

3. If any of the [orfeitable property described above, as a resull of any act or omission

by the defendants:

Cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;

Has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;
Has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the Court, |

Has been substantially diminished in value; or

Has been commingled with other property which cannot be divided
without difficulty;

oo o

the Uniled States of America shall be entitled to forfeiture of substitute property under the
provisions of Title 21, United States Code, Section 853(p), as incorporated by Title 28, Uniled States

Codc, Section 2461(c).

All pursuant to 18 U.5.C. § 981(a)(1)(C) and 28 U.S.C. § 2461(c).

A TRUE BILL:

FOREPERSON

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY
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